
Ojai Valley Municipal Advisory Council  January 26, 2026 
Regular Meeting Agenda  Page 1 
 
 
 

    OJAI VALLEY MUNICIPAL ADVISORY COUNCIL 
                                                      REGULAR MEETING NOTICE AND AGENDA 

                     Oak View Community Center, Kunkle Room 
           18 Valley Road, Oak View 

             Monday, January 26, 2026, 7:00PM 
         

Chair: Grace Malloy, Vice Chair: Barbara Kennedy 
Council Members: Marilyn Miller, Joseph Westbury, Terry Wright 

 
OPENING 

 
1. Call to Order. 

 
2. Roll Call.  

 
3. Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag of the United States of America. 
 
4. Nomination and Election of Ojai Valley MAC Chair and Vice Chair for 2026. 
 
5. Approval of the Draft Meeting Minutes of November 17, 2025. 
 
6. Adoption of the Agenda. 
 
7. Public Comments for Items NOT on the Agenda.  
 

 
INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 

 
8. City of Ojai Planning Commission Update. 
 

 
  

Public Comments may be provided using the following TWO options:  
Option 1: E-MAIL PUBLIC COMMENT- If you wish to make a comment on a specific agenda item, please submit 
your comment to the Executive Officer at ovmac@venturacounty.gov for that item via email by 3:30 p.m. the day of 
the meeting to ensure your letter is received and entered into the record. Please include the following information in 
your email: (A) Meeting Date, (B) Agenda Item Number, (C) Subject, (D) Your Full Name. During public comment on 
the agenda item specified in your email, your comment will be submitted for the record. Please limit your written 
correspondence to 300 words or less. 
 
Option 2 – IN PERSON PUBLIC COMMENT - If you wish to make a comment in-person, you must be present at the 
meeting location and provide your comment prior to the close of the public comment period for the item you wish to 
speak on. Each meeting will have sign-in sheets to participate in Public Comment at the meeting location for in- person 
comments. 

mailto:ovmac@venturacounty.gov


Ojai Valley Municipal Advisory Council  January 26, 2026 
Regular Meeting Agenda  Page 2 
 
 
 

ACTION ITEMS 
 
9. Assignment of 2 Ojai Valley MAC members to the Stakeholders Traffic Policy 

Committee. 
 

10. Review of Forest Home Minor Modification to Conditional Use Permit No. 3929 
(Case No. PL21-0019) and Variance to Maintain Historic Camp Population Levels. 

 
 

COUNCILMEMBER AND EXECUTIVE STAFF COMMENTS 
 

11. Executive Staff Comments. 
 

12. Councilmember Comments. 
 

CLOSING 
 

13. Adjournment, the Next Meeting is Monday, February 9 ,  2026, at 7:00PM in the 
Kunkle Room at the Oak View Community Center, 18 Valley Road, Oak View. 
 

 



 

Ojai Valley Municipal Advisory Council  November 17, 2025 
Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 1 
 
 
 

         OJAI VALLEY MUNICIPAL ADVISORY COUNCIL 
                                                                  REGULAR MEETING MINUTES (DRAFT) 

                         18 Valley Road, Oak View 
                                                Monday, November 17, 2025, 7:00PM 

         
 
Chair: Grace Malloy, Vice Chair: Barbara Kennedy 
Council Members: Marilyn Miller, Joseph Westbury, Terry Wright 

 
1. Call to Order  

Vice Chair Kennedy called the meeting to order at 7:06 p.m. 
 

2. Roll Call.  
Council Members Present:   Barbara Kennedy, Vice Chair 
                                             Terry Wright  

  Joseph Westbury 
 

Council Members Absent:  Grace Malloy, Chair 
 Marilyn Miller 
 
Also in attendance: Supervisor Matt LaVere  
 Lori Key  

 
3. Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag of the United States of America. 

 
4. Adoption of the Agenda. 
 

Motion: adopt the agenda as presented 
Moved by: Barbara Kennedy, Seconded by: Terry Wright 
 
Vote: 3-0 
Yes: Barbara Kennedy, Joseph Westbury, Terry Wright 
Absent: Grace Malloy and Marilyn Miller 
 
 
 
 

Public Comments FOR IN PERSON MEETINGS may be provided using the following TWO options:  
Option 1: E-MAIL PUBLIC COMMENT- If you wish to make a comment on a specific agenda item, please submit 
your comment to the Executive Officer at ovmac@ventura.org for that item via email by 3:30 p.m. the day of the 
meeting to ensure your letter is received and entered into the record. PLEASE INCLUDE THE FOLLOWING  
INFORMATION IN YOUR EMAIL: (A) MEETING DATE, (B) AGENDA ITEM NUMBER, (C) SUBJECT OR TITLE OF 
THE ITEM, (D) YOUR FULL NAME. DURING PUBLIC COMMENT ON THE AGENDA ITEM SPECIFIED IN YOUR  
EMAIL, YOUR COMMENT WILL BE SUBMITTED FOR THE RECORD. Please limit your written correspondence to 
300 words or less. 

 
Option 2 – IN PERSON PUBLIC COMMENT - If you wish to make a comment in-person, you must be present at the 
meeting location and provide your comment prior to the close of the public comment period for the item you wish to 
speak on. Each meeting will have sign-in sheets to participate in Public Comment at the meeting location for in- 
person comments. 

mailto:ovmac@ventura.org


 

Ojai Valley Municipal Advisory Council  November 17, 2025 
Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 2 
 
 
 

5. Approval of the Draft Minutes of the Ojai Valley Municipal Advisory Council Meeting Held, 
October 20, 2025. 
 
Motion: approval of the meeting minutes of October 20, 2025 
Moved by: Terry Wright, Seconded by: Joseph Westbury 
 
Vote: 3-0 
Yes: Barbara Kennedy, Joseph Westbury, Terry Wright 
Absent: Grace Malloy and Marilyn Miller 
 

6. Approval of the 2026 Ojai Valley Municipal Advisory Council meeting calendar. 
 
Motion: approval of the 2026 Ojai Valley Municipal Advisory Council meeting calendar 
Moved by: Barbara Kennedy, Seconded by: Terry Wright 

 
Vote: 3-0 
Yes: Barbara Kennedy, Joseph Westbury, Terry Wright 
Absent: Grace Malloy and Marilyn Miller 

 
7. Public Comments for Items Not on the Agenda.  
 

Ron Solarzano comments on events of the Oak View Library, Ojai Library, and Meiners Oaks 
Library; comments on Art Salon for Adults at the Oak View Library held on the second Saturday of 
each month; and comments on the Ojai Library getting courtyard updates, general building upgrades 
interior and the lighting upgrades. 
 
Teena Broumand comments on focusing on the flow of traffic; comments on moving forward 
collectively with the City of Ojai to find solutions to traffic.  
 
Michelle Thomas comments on speeding issues, environmental issues, and evacuation plans to 
safely leave the Ojai Valley in an emergency.  
 
California Highway Patrol (CHP) officer Byrd comments on proactively towing abandoned vehicles, 
motorhomes, boats, and junk cars. Comments on concentrating on the enforcement of speeding 
throughout Ojai Valley; comments on adding a radar trailer in the Ojai Valley; comments on DUI 
enforcement will be increased as the holidays near; comments if you see something, say something; 
and comments on the importance of locking your cars.  CBYRD@CHP.CA.Gov.  
 
Chief Jenkins thanks the CHP for being responsive to calls; comments on thanking the City of Ojai 
and County of Ventura Public Works Agency for proactively keeping the drains in the valley clear; 
comments on vehicle thefts, and unlocked vehicles; comments on the upcoming Sheriff’s toy drive 
at KC’s market, on December 18th. Comments that Nordhoff High School did not have an explosion; 
and comments if you see something, call Sheriff’s non-emergency number or 911 for assistance.  
  

8. City of Ojai Planning Commission Update – Any items to share. 
No one is present 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

mailto:CBYRD@CHP.CA.Gov


 

Ojai Valley Municipal Advisory Council  November 17, 2025 
Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 3 
 
 
 

 
 

9. Discussion on the creation of an Ad Hoc committee regarding community outreach on the 
Ojai Traffic Policy. 
 
Motion: Direct Supervisor LaVere’s office to create a stakeholder’s traffic policy committee to 
include 2 Ojai Valley Municipal Advisory Council members and other members to be determined.  
Moved by: Barbara Kennedy, Seconded by Joseph Westbury 
 
Vote: 3-0 
Yes: Barbara Kennedy, Joseph Westbury, Terry Wright 
Absent: Grace Malloy and Marilyn Miller 
 

10. Councilmember Comments. 
 
Terry Wright mentions the Petrochem Chemical Plant needs to be cleaned up.  
 
Barbara Kennedy thanks the Sheriff’s department and Public Works Agency for attending the Trunk 
or Treat event at the Oak View Park and Resource Center, over 400 people attended.  
 
Barbara mentioned the Christmas Caravan starting at Ranch Market in Oak View on Dec. 13th. 
Decorated vehicles can line up at 4 p.m. the caravan starts at 5 p.m.  
 
Barbara appreciates Cal Trans for installing narrow bridge signs and speed signs visible on both 
sides of the San Antonio Creek bridge between Casitas Springs and Oak View.  

 
11. Adjournment.   8:05 p.m. 

 
Next Meeting is Monday, January 26,  2026, at 7:00PM at Oak View Community Center 



 
DATE:  January 26, 2026  
 
TO:   Ojai Valley Municipal Advisory Committee Members 
 
FROM:  Kristina Boero, Senior Planner, Ventura County Planning Division 
 
SUBJECT:  Forest Home Minor Modification to Conditional Use Permit No. 3929 

(Case No. PL21-0019) 

 
 
Location  
 
The project site is addressed at 655 Burnham Road, in the community of Oak View. The 
nearest cross streets are Riverside Road and Burnham Road. The subject property is 
comprised of approximately 130.58 acres1. The CUP boundary encompasses 83.35 
acres 
 
The project site includes the following Zoning and Land Use designations.  
 

a. Countywide General Plan Land Use Map Designation: Rural and Open Space 
 
b. Ojai Valley Area Plan Land Use Map Designation: Rural Institutional 
 
c. Zoning Designation: RA-40 ac/SRP/TRU/DKS/HCWC/CWPA (Rural Agricultural 

40 acres minimum lot size / Scenic Resource Protection /Temporary Rental Unit 
/Dark Sky/Habitat Connectivity Wildlife Corridor/ Critical Wildlife Passage Area 
overlay zones 

   

(Refer to Attachment 1, Location, Zoning and General Plan Maps). 
 
Request 

The applicant, Forest Home, requests a Minor Modification to Conditional Use Permit No. 
3929 to continue the operation and maintenance of the 83-acre project site as a camp for 
a 20-year term. No new structures, ground disturbance, tree removal or tree 
encroachment is proposed.  

The request also includes a variance to Sections 81017-17(a) and 8107-17(b) of the 
Ventura County Non-Coastal Zoning Ordinance (NCZO) to continue the camp's historic 

 
1  Pursuant to Certificate of Compliance No. 02-10-556, the subject property is considered 1 legal lot when 

combined with APNs 032-0-201-195, 032-0-201-210, 032-0-202-095, 032-0-202-105, totaling 
approximately 130.58 acres. Existing camp development and the operations will continue to occur on 
APN 032-0-201-235. 



Ojai Valley MAC Memorandum 
Forest Home, PL21-0019 

Page 2 of 4 
 
overnight population of 252 campers, staff and guests, and the daily population of 1,080 
campers, staff and guests otherwise permitted under NCZO code revisions enacted after 
the camp was established in 1979. 
 
Table No. 1  below includes an inventory of existing structures and site improvements. 
 

Table 1 - Existing Structures and Site Improvements 
NAME SIZE (square feet) 

Ranch House 2,559 

Camp Office/Guest Rooms 1,664 

Bath House 995 

B.B.Q. Area 0.23 acres 

Group Picnic Area NA 

Parking "Lot A" 25 spaces 

Parking "Lot B" 22 spaces 

Parking "Lot C" 14 spaces 

Parking "Lot F" 12 spaces 

Parking "Lot G" 166 spaces 

Fellowship Hall 6,338 

Group Tents 230 

Camp Recreation/Store 1575 

Sports Skate Park And Shade 
Sails 

0.65 acres 

Gazebo 200; 234 

Pump House, R-Rooms 501; 681; 681 

Storage 191 

Live Oak Glenn 0.36 acres 

Live Oak Creek NA 

Barn And Storage 2,437 

Staircase NA 

Pool Complex 0.66 acres 

Amphitheatre (Stage and 
Bleachers W/Shade Canvas) 

2,700 

Parking Accessible 6 spaces 

Deck Under 30 Inches High 320 

Garage And Maintenance 721 

Storage Tent 230 

Stairs/Decks @ Staff Housing 375 

Meeting Room 1,433 

Parking "Lot D" 42 spaces 

Cabins 1,144 

5 Manufactured Home Sites  742, 742; 1,196; 715 

Power Shed And RV Dump 37 

Power Shed 109 

Server Shed (I.T. Equip.) 68 



Ojai Valley MAC Memorandum 
Forest Home, PL21-0019 

Page 3 of 4 
 

Storage Shed 60 

Power Shed 101 

Elec. Panel/Transf. NA 

Deck Under 30" High 178 

Play Structure 712 

Deck Under 30" High 400 

Sitting Area & Fire Pit NA 

Shade Roof Over Bench 40 

Climbing Wall NA 

Zip Line Towers 10; 21 

Zip Line Launch 28 

Zip Line Poles NA 

Tree House (to be removed) 313 

Deck Under 30" High 157 

Power Shed 100 

 
Forest Homes operates the camp year-round which includes a youth summer, and winter, 
fall, gap year programs and retreats for all ages. Campers arrive and depart the site via 
buss or private vehicle.  
 
No new employees are proposed. Currently there are 3 permanent staff and of 8 seasonal 
staff, which is subject to fluctuation.  
 
The camp will continue to utilize a portable amplification system and microphone in the 
amphitheater during scheduled programs. All sound amplification devices used outdoors 
for both day and nighttime use, are devices owned and controlled by the camp.  
 
Access to the project site is provided by two onsite driveways adjacent to Burnham Road. 
Wastewater service will continue to be provided by the Ojai Valley Sanitation District and 
domestic water service will continue to be provided by the Ventura River Water District 
(Attachment 2). 
 
CEQA Determination 
 
Pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15164(b), the Planning Division is preparing an 
Addendum to a previously adopted Mitigated Negative Declaration (MND).  
 
On September 19, 1998, the Planning Director adopted a Mitigated Negative Declaration 
(MND) that evaluated the environmental impacts of the project. The project included the 
demolition of and relocation of an existing barn, removal and relocation of an existing 
mobilome, removal and relocation of 5 recreational vehicle (RV) spaces, construction of 
previously approved pool and pool house, construction of  4 previously approved cabins, 
construction of a previously approved lodge and installation of four camping tents. The MND 
also evaluated a projected visitor population increase from 14,000 visitors per day to 20,000 



Ojai Valley MAC Memorandum 
Forest Home, PL21-0019 

Page 4 of 4 
 
visitors per day under full buildout, which increased traffic generation from 10 Average Daily 
Trips (ADT) to 14 ADT upon full buildout. The MND also evaluated camp capacity increasing 
from 964 to 1,080 people (a change of 116 people)2. 
 
Attachments: 
 
Attachment 1 Location, Zoning and General Plan Maps 
Attachment 2 Project Description and Project Plans  
Attachment 3 Project Notification List 
Attachment 4 Completeness Determination Letter for PL21-0019 
 
 
 

 
2 The MND evaluated camp capacity at 1,080 people, which includes overnight capacity. Condition No. 58 

of the 1998 modification specified that overnight capacity would remain the same at 252 people, as 
previously permitted. 

 



032-0-201-235

BU
RN

HA
M RD

RI
VE

RS
ID

E R
D

RO
CK

AW
AY

 RD

0 500250 Feet

É RH

Disclaimer: This Map was created by the Ventura County Resource

Management Agency, Mapping Services - GIS which is designed

and operated solely for the convenience of the County and related

public agencies. The County does no twarrant the accuracy of this

mapand no decision involving a risk of economic loss or physical

injury should be made in reliance thereon.Aerial PhotographyAerial Photography

APN: 032-0-201-235

 Ventura County,California
 Resource Management Agency

 GIS Development & Mapping Services
 Map Created on 1-16-2026

 This aerial imagery is under the
 copyrights of Vexcel 2024

Legend
PL21-0019

County of Ventura
Planning Commission Hearing

APN: 032-0-201-235
655 Burnham Rd.

 Oak View CA  93022

116080
Text Box

Attachment 1- Location, Zoning and General Plan Maps





OS-20 ac/TRU/DKS/HCWC

OS-40 ac/TRU/DKS/HCWC/CWPA

RA-40 ac/TRU/DKS/HCWC/CWPA

AE-40 ac/TRU/DKS/HCWC/CWPA

RA-40 ac/SRP/TRU/DKS/HCWC/CWPA

OS-40 ac/SRP/TRU/DKS/HCWC/CWPA

AE-40 ac/TRU/DKS/HCWC/CWPA

AE-40 ac/SRP/TRU/DKS/HCWC/CWPA

RE-2 ac/TRU/DKS/HCWC

RE-20,000 sq ft/TRU/DKS/HCWC

Open Space

Rural

Open Space

Open Space

Rural

Very Low Density Residential
Very Low Density Residential

Very Low Density Residential

Very Low Density Residential

Very Low Density Residential

Open Space

Very Low Density Residential
OS 40

RURAL INSTITUTIONAL

OS 20

UR 1-2
UR 1-2

OS 20

RR 2

UR 1-2

UR 1-2

RR 2

UR 1-2

UR 4-6

BU
RN

HA
M RD

RI
VE

RS
ID

E R
DROCKAWAY RD

0 500250 Feet

É RH

Disclaimer: This Map was created by the Ventura County Resource

Management Agency, Mapping Services - GIS which is designed

and operated solely for the convenience of the County and related

public agencies. The County does no twarrant the accuracy of this

mapand no decision involving a risk of economic loss or physical

injury should be made in reliance thereon.General Plan and Zoning MapGeneral Plan and Zoning Map

APN: 032-0-201-235

 Ventura County,California
 Resource Management Agency

 GIS Development & Mapping Services
 Map Created on 11-10-2025

 This aerial imagery is under the
 copyrights of Vexcel 2024

General Plan
Zone Designation

Legend
PL21-0019

County of Ventura
Planning Commission Hearing

APN: 032-0-201-235
655 Burnham Rd.

 Oak View CA  93022

116080
Text Box



RIVERSIDE RD

BU
RN

HA
M

 R
D

4320

20

20

20

19

13

17

17

17

13

23

25

30

32

32

32 32

32

F4144

5

4948

4144

45

40

46

15

46

13

13

13

13

48

43

13

24

28C1

51

P

25

9

8

7

P

6

10

12

2

27

P

16

1
36

39
L

3

18

22
37

50

P
11

L3935

43

34

39

38

21

SC

TE

29

29

29

29

33b

33c

33a

29

29

22

47

16

39

31

P

P

13

13

13

13

13

33e

33d

Title

Sheet No.

Issue Date

marshillstudio.com

Costa Mesa, CA 92626

Revisions

(714) 556-8299 Phone

2533 Greenbriar Lane

HILLRSMA
A R C H I T E C T U R E
&  P  L  A  N  N  I  N  G s t u d i o

Ren. 7/25

OR
ASSAM .P YNOHTNA

No. C24376 A

A FOILO F C

R
INT A

S

ET

TC

A RCH ITE

DESN

ECIL

MARS HILL STUDIO, INC.

VARIANCE
SUBMITTAL 

11/05/25

DATE OF SIGNING:

NOV. 11, 2025

  

65
5 

B
U

R
N

H
A

M
 R

O
A

D
V

E
N

T
U

R
A

 C
O

U
N

T
Y

, C
A

FO
R

E
ST

 H
O

M
E

 C
A

M
P 

- O
JA

I

A-1.1

SITE PLAN
EXISTING

 

KEY NOTES:

 (E) CARETAKERS RESIDENCE TO BE CONVERTED

NAME

RANCH HOUSE
CAMP OFFICE/GUEST ROOMS
BATH HOUSE
B.B.Q. AREA
GROUP PICNIC AREA
BBQ AREA
PARKING "LOT A"
PARKING "LOT B"
PARKING "LOT C"
PARKING "LOT F"
PARKING "LOT G"
FELLOWSHIP HALL
GROUP TENTS
CAMP RECREATION/STORE

SPORTS SKATE PARK AND SHADE
SAILS
GAZEBO
PUMP HOUSE, R-ROOMS
STORAGE
LIVE OAK GLENN
LIVE OAK CREEK
BARN AND STORAGE
STAIRCASE
POOL COMPLEX
AMPHITHEATRE (STAGE AND
BLEACHERS W/SHADE CANVAS)
PARKING ACCESSIBLE 6 SPACES

25 SPACES
22 SPACES
14 SPACES
12 SPACES
166 SPACES

1

3

2
3

6,338 S.F.

1575 S.F.

12,600 S.F.

200 S.F., 234 S.F.
501 S.F.,681, 681

191 S.F.
0.36 AC.

2,437 S.F.

0.66 AC.

2,700 S.F.

120

200

373-W (1989)

UNITS

1
1
1

S.F.

2,559 S.F.
1,664 S.F.

995 S.F.

0.23 AC.

4
4

6030 (1958)
35128 (1980)
131-N (1983)

DECK UNDER 30" HIGH
GARAGE AND MAINTENANCE
STORAGE TENT
STAIRS/DECKS @ STAFF HOUSING

MEETING ROOM
PARKING "LOT D"
CABINS

MANUFACTURED HOME SITE
POWER SHED AND RV DUMP

0.65 AC. PAD

C00-001227 (2001)

(E-U.P) POWER SHED
(E-U.P) SERVER SHED (I.T. EQUIP.)
(E-U.P) STORAGE SHED
(E-U.P) POWER SHED
(E-U.P) ELEC. PANEL/TRANSF.
(E-U.P) DECK UNDER 30" HIGH
(E-U.P) PLAY STRUCTURE
(E-U.P) DECK UNDER 30" HIGH
(E-U.P) SITTING AREA & FIRE PIT
(E-U.P) SHADE ROOF OVER BENCH
(E-U.P) CLIMBING WALL
(E-U.P) ZIP LINE TOWERS
(E-U.P) ZIP LINE LAUNCH
(E-U.P) ZIP LINE POLES
(E-U.P) TREE HOUSE*
(E-U.P) DECK UNDER 30" HIGH
(E-U.P) POWER SHED

1
1
1
6

42 SPACES
5
5
1
1
1
1
1
4
1
1
1
3
1
1
2
1
2
1
1
1

320 S.F.
721 S.F.
230 S.F.

375 S.F. TOTAL
1,433 S.F.

1,144 S.F.
(a,d) 742  (b,e) 1196  (c) 715

37 S.F.
109 S.F.
68 S.F.
60 S.F.

101 S.F.

178 S.F.
712 S.F.
400 S.F.

40 S.F.

10 S.F., 21 S.F.
28± S.F.

-

313 S.F.
157 S.F.
100 S.F.

60

100
5

7911 (1952)

NAME

LANDSCAPING @ TRANSFORMERS
TRASH ENCLOSURE
SEA CARGO CONTAINER
 OAK TREES
ACCESSIBLE PARKING UPGRADES

UNITS

2
1
1
3
9

NATIVE SPECIES, DROUGHT TOLERANT
146 S.F.
320 S.F.

15 GALLON
TOTAL PARKING CAPACITY UNCHANGED - ACCESSIBILITY UPGRADES ONLY

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33c

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

41

42

43

44

45

46

47

48

49

50

51

33b33a

L

TE

SC

OAK

P

OVERNIGHT
GUESTS

OCC
LOAD

5
100

STAFF HOUSING33d 33e

230 S.F. 144 E01-000194 (2001)18

BUILDING HATCH KEY

SCALE: 1" = 60'-0"

0 6030 120
SITE PLAN
EXISTING

N
O

R
T

H

PROJECT DATA

(E) BUILDING

MODULAR BUILDING SITE

116080
Text Box



116080
Text Box
Attachment 2	 - Project Description and Project Plans 





Forest Home Revised Project Description (November 2025) 
 
The Applicant requests a Minor Modification to Conditional Use Permit No. 3929 to 
continue the operation and maintenance of the 83-acre project site as a camp for a 20-
year term. No new structures, ground disturbance or tree removal or encroachment 
proposed.  
 
The request also includes a Variance to Sections 81017-17(a) and 8107-17(b) of the 
Ventura County Non-coastal Zoning Ordinance (NCZO) to continue the camp's historic 
overnight population of 252 campers, staff and guests, and the daily population of 1,080 
campers, staff and guests otherwise permitted under Ventura County NCZO code 
revisions enacted after the camp was established in 1979. 
 
The following structures and site improvements are authorized: 
 

Table 1 - Existing Structures and Site Improvements 
NAME SIZE (square feet) 

Ranch House 2,559 
Camp Office/Guest Rooms 1,664 
Bath House 995 
B.B.Q. Area 0.23 ACRES 
Group Picnic Area NA 
Parking "Lot A" 25 spaces 
Parking "Lot B" 22 spaces 
Parking "Lot C" 14 spaces 
Parking "Lot F" 12 spaces 
Parking "Lot G" 166 spaces 
Fellowship Hall 6,338 
Group Tents 230 
Camp Recreation/Store 1575 
Sports Skate Park And Shade Sails 0.65 ACRES 
Gazebo 200; 234 
Pump House, R-Rooms 501; 681; 681 
Storage 191 
Live Oak Glenn 0.36 acres 
Live Oak Creek NA 
Barn And Storage 2,437 
Staircase NA 
Pool Complex 0.66 acres 
Amphitheatre (Stage And Bleachers W/Shade Canvas) 2,700 
Parking Accessible 6 spaces 
Deck Under 30 Inches High 320 
Garage And Maintenance 721 
Storage Tent 230 
Stairs/Decks @ Staff Housing 375 
Meeting Room 1,433 
Parking "Lot D" 42 spaces 
Cabins 1,144 
Manufactured Home Site  742; 1,196; 715 
Power Shed And RV Dump 37 
Power Shed 109 



Server Shed (I.T. Equip.) 68 
Storage Shed 60 
Power Shed 101 
Elec. Panel/Transf. NA 
Deck Under 30" High 178 
Play Structure 712 
Deck Under 30" High 400 
Sitting Area & Fire Pit NA 
Shade Roof Over Bench 40 
Climbing Wall NA 
Zip Line Towers 10; 21 
Zip Line Launch 28 
Zip Line Poles NA 
Tree House* 313 
Deck Under 30" High 157 
Power Shed 100 

 
Forest Homes operates the camp year-round which includes youth summer, winter, fall, 
gap year programs and retreats for all ages. Campers arrive and depart the site via buss 
or private vehicle.  
 
No new employees are proposed. Currently there are 3 permanent staff and of 8 seasonal 
staff, which is subject to fluctuation.  
 
The Camp will continue to utilize a portable amplification system and microphone in the 
amphitheater during scheduled programs. All sound amplification devices that is used 
outdoors for both day and nighttime use, are devices owned and controlled by Camp.  
 
Access to the project site is provided by two onsite driveways adjacent to Burnham Road. 
Wastewater service will continue to be provided by the Ojai Valley Sanitation District and 
domestic water service will continue to be provided by the Ventura River Water District.  
 
 



apn name_1 name_2 mail_addr cty_sta zip
011019030 OR FARM LLC 4083 W AVENUE L STE 367 LANCASTER CA 93536
011019031 HALEY ROGER W SURV TR ET AL 10846 SANTA ANA RD VENTURA CA 93001-9769
031009411 PARMENTER MARY E TR 9220  BLACKCAP LN NEWBERG OR 97132
031009412 NANCY M MOIR TRUST 526  BURNHAM RD OAK VIEW CA 93022
031009413 BUTLER VICKEY* BUTLER RUBY 548 BURHAM RD OAK VIEW CA 93022
031009414 BELTRAN JESUS 564 BURNHAM RD OAK VIEW CA 93022
031009415 JENNIFER L MULLER 570  BURNHAM RD OAK VIEW CA 93022
031009417 HINMAN KATHRYN J 2281 LAS CANOAS RD SANTA BARBARA CA 93105-2112
031009429 REYES CHRISTOBAL M-TINA M 690 RIVERSIDE RD OAK VIEW CA 93022-9332
031009430 NOLAN R COTHAM LAUREN A GROSS 578  BURNHAM RD OAKVIEW CA 93022
031020001 COLOMBO CHRISTINA TR 290 ROCKAWAY RD OAK VIEW CA 93022
031020002 VANESSA MOONEY 272  ROCKAWAY RD OAK VIEW CA 93022
031020003 KELSCH DENNIS-ELIZABETH TR 5226  RADCLIFF ST VENTURA CA 93003
031020004 DALY ERIC E 543 BURNHAM RD OAK VIEW CA 93022-9322
031020005 DALY ERIC E 543 BURNHAM RD OAK VIEW CA 93022-9322
031020006 LURIE DREW W-CLAUDIA A 517 BURNHAM RD OAK VIEW CA 93022-9322
031020007 511-513 BURNHAM RD LLC 2900 E OJAI RD OJAI CA 93023
031020008 MCLEOD CHARLES J-DORCAS A TR 509 BURNHAM RD OAK VIEW CA 93022
031020009 BACKIC VUKOSAVA TR 1350 CHEVIN CREEK RD REDDING CA 96003
031020011 NYE JAMES H-CATHERINE D TR 483  BURNHAM RD OAK VIEW CA 93022
031020018 SALUPPO JOHN GEDDES JOAN 285 ROCKAWAY RD OAK VIEW CA 93022-9307
031020019 JORDAN WRIGHT 275  ROCKAWAY RD OAK VIEW CA 93022
032020105 KENNY KEENAN-SHANNON TR 775 BURNHAM RD OAK VIEW CA 93022
032020108 ORTNER RANDALL K TR 45 SUNSHINE LN SANTA BARBARA CA 93105
032020115 T BONE HOLDINGS LLC 18300 OXNARD ST TARZANA CA 91356
032020116 ORTNER RANDALL K TR 45 SUNSHINE LN SANTA BARBARA CA 93105
032020120 VENTURA COUNTY FL CTRL DIST 800 S VICTORIA AV VENTURA CA 93009-0001
032020122 VENTURA COUNTY FL CTRL DIST 800 S VICTORIA AV VENTURA CA 93009-0001
032020123 FOREST HOME INC 40000 VALLEY OF THE FALLS DR FOREST FALLS CA 92339-9674
032020205 PARK LINDA R PARK(DONALD K)-LINDA R 655 RIVERSIDE RD OAK VIEW CA 93022
032020207 PROGRESSIVE ENVIRO IND INC PO BOX 4395 SANTA BARBARA CA 93140
032020210 FOREST HOME INC 40000 VALLEY OF THE FALLS DR FOREST FALLS CA 92339-9674
032020211 VENTURA COUNTY FL CTRL DIST 800 S VICTORIA AV VENTURA CA 93009-0001
Aras of Interest City of Ojai ATTN: City Manager 401 South Ventura ST. Ojai CA 93023

116080
Text Box
Attachment 3	 - Project Notification List





 

 
 
 
 
 
January 7, 2026 
 
Mars Hill Studio, Inc. 
Mr. Anthony P. Massaro 
2533 Greenbriar Lane 
Costa Mesa, CA 92626 
tony@marshillstudio.com  
 
Subject:  Determination of Application Completeness 

Major Modification to Conditional Use Permit No. 3929 
Case No. PL21-0019 
Forest Homes Camp 
655 Burnham Road, in the community of Ojai 
Assessor’s Parcel Number 032-0-201-235 

 
Dear Mr. Massaro:  
 
Ventura County agencies reviewed your application as submitted on March 5, 2021, 
May 18, 2022, July 29, 2022, November 13, 2023, January 31, 2025, June 17, 2025, 
November 12, 2025, November 17, 2025, and December 9, 2025. The materials 
submitted to date are found to comprise a complete application as of January 7, 2026.  
 
Draft Project Description     
 
Below is the draft project description that staff has generated from the information 
provided in the application package.  Please review this draft project description and verify 
with staff that it is correct: 
 
The applicant requests a Minor Modification to Conditional Use Permit No. 3929 to 
continue the operation and maintenance of the 83-acre project site as a camp for a 20-
year term. No new structures, ground disturbance or tree removal or encroachment 
proposed.  
 
The request also includes a Variance to Sections 81017-17(a) and 8107-17(b) of the 
Ventura County Non-coastal Zoning Ordinance (NCZO) to continue the camp's historic 
overnight population of 252 campers, staff and guests, and the daily population of 1,080 
campers, staff and guests otherwise permitted under Ventura County NCZO code 
revisions enacted after the camp was established in 1979. 
 
The following structures and site improvements are authorized: 
 

mailto:tony@marshillstudio.com
116080
Text Box
Attachment 4	 - Completeness Determination Letter for PL21-0019





Mr. Massaro 
Case No. PL21-0019 

January 7, 2026 
Page 2 of 4 

 
Table 1 - Existing Structures and Site Improvements 

NAME SIZE (square feet) 

Ranch House 2,559 

Camp Office/Guest Rooms 1,664 

Bath House 995 

B.B.Q. Area 0.23 ACRES 

Group Picnic Area NA 

Parking "Lot A" 25 spaces 

Parking "Lot B" 22 spaces 

Parking "Lot C" 14 spaces 

Parking "Lot F" 12 spaces 

Parking "Lot G" 166 spaces 

Fellowship Hall 6,338 

Group Tents 230 

Camp Recreation/Store 1575 

Sports Skate Park And Shade Sails 0.65 ACRES 

Gazebo 200; 234 

Pump House, R-Rooms 501; 681; 681 

Storage 191 

Live Oak Glenn 0.36 acres 

Live Oak Creek NA 

Barn And Storage 2,437 

Staircase NA 

Pool Complex 0.66 acres 

Amphitheatre (Stage And Bleachers W/Shade 
Canvas) 

2,700 

Parking Accessible 6 spaces 

Deck Under 30 Inches High 320 

Garage And Maintenance 721 

Storage Tent 230 

Stairs/Decks @ Staff Housing 375 

Meeting Room 1,433 

Parking "Lot D" 42 spaces 

Cabins 1,144 

Manufactured Home Site  742; 1,196; 715 

Power Shed And RV Dump 37 

Power Shed 109 

Server Shed (I.T. Equip.) 68 

Storage Shed 60 

Power Shed 101 

Elec. Panel/Transf. NA 

Deck Under 30" High 178 

Play Structure 712 

Deck Under 30" High 400 

Sitting Area & Fire Pit NA 

Shade Roof Over Bench 40 

Climbing Wall NA 

Zip Line Towers 10; 21 

Zip Line Launch 28 

Zip Line Poles NA 

Tree House* 313 



Mr. Massaro 
Case No. PL21-0019 

January 7, 2026 
Page 3 of 4 

 
Deck Under 30" High 157 

Power Shed 100 

 
Forest Homes operates the camp year-round which includes youth summer, winter, fall, 
gap year programs and retreats for all ages. Campers arrive and depart the site via buss 
or private vehicle.  
 
No new employees are proposed. Currently there are 3 permanent staff and of 8 seasonal 
staff, which is subject to fluctuation.  
 
The Camp will continue to utilize a portable amplification system and microphone in the 
amphitheater during scheduled programs. All sound amplification devices that is used 
outdoors for both day and nighttime use, are devices owned and controlled by Camp.  

 
Access to the project site is provided by two onsite driveways adjacent to Burnham Road. 
Wastewater service will continue to be provided by the Ojai Valley Sanitation District and 
domestic water service will continue to be provided by the Ventura River Water District. 
 
Although your application is complete for the purposes of filing and no additional 
information is required at this time, the County may request you to "clarify, amplify, correct 
or otherwise supplement the information required for the application" (Government Code, 
Section 65944). Failure to provide the additional information in a timely manner could 
delay the processing of your application and/or result in a recommendation for denial 
without prejudice by the Resource Management Agency, Planning Division.   
 
Environmental Determination 
 
The next step in the permit process is for County staff to determine the appropriate type 
of environmental document for your project. 
 
Pursuant to Section 15164(b )of the State Guidelines for Implementation of the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), the County has determined that an addendum to the 
previously adopted Mitigated Negative Declaration will be prepared for the proposed 
project.  
 
The environmental document determination for this project, is appealable to the Planning 
Commission by submitting an appeal form, appeal reimbursement agreement form, and 
a $1,000 deposit to the Planning Division by January 20, 2026 (i.e., within 10 calendar 
days from the date of this letter, including weekends and holidays). 
 
The hearing for the project has not yet been scheduled. I will notify you of the tentative 
hearing date once the hearing documents have been prepared. You will receive a mailed 
notice of the public hearing.   
 



Mr. Massaro 
Case No. PL21-0019 

January 7, 2026 
Page 4 of 4 

 
If you have any questions about this letter, please contact me at 
Kristina.Boero@venturacounty.gov or (805) 654-2467.  
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
__________________________________ 
Kristina Boero, Senior Planner 
Residential Permits Section  
Ventura County Planning Division 
 
Encl: 
 Memorandum from Public Works Agency Advanced Planning, dated December 17, 2025 
 Memorandum from Public Works Agency Groundwater Section, dated January 7, 2026 
 
c: Gary Wingerd, 40000 Valley of the Falls Drive, Forest Falls, CA 92339 

Troy Avery, 655 Burnham Road, Oak View, CA 93022  
Case File 
 

 



WATERSHED PROTECTION
WATERSHED PLANNING AND PERMITS DIVISION
800 South Victoria Avenue, Ventura, California 93009

M E M O R A N D U M

DATE: December 17, 2025

TO: Kristina Boero, Case Planner
County of Ventura

FROM: Yunsheng Su, PWA-WP Case Reviewer 

SUBJECT: PL21-0019 655 Burnham Rd, Oak View, CA, 93022  
APN:032020123   
CEQA Review Comments and Conditions

Pursuant to your request dated 12/15/2025, this office has reviewed the submitted 
materials and provides the following comments. 

PROJECT LOCATION: 
655 Burnham Rd, Oak View, CA, 93022
Location Map:



PL21-0019 655 Burnham Rd, Oak View, CA, 93022
December 17, 2025
Page 2 of 3

PROJECT DESCRIPTION:
Forest Homes has revised their project description and site plan. There is no new 
development proposed and no increase in operational components of the camp. This 
includes no increase in the number of campers, staff and guests. They are just 
requesting a time extension and variance to allow the existing overnight and daily 
populations to remain what they have operated at for the last 15 years. There are 5 
existing mobilome sites in the southern portion of the property. The sites were 
previously approved under the last modification. This project will be going to Planning 
Commission on either March 5th or March 19th. Planning is preparing an Addendum to 
the previously adopted MND, so an initial study response is not needed.

APPLICATION COMPLETENESS:
Complete - from our area of concern. 

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ANALYSIS:
Item 31a. Flood Control Facilities/Watercourses – Ventura County Public Works 
Agency, Watershed Protection is deemed to be Less Than Significant.

The proposed project is situated about 50 feet from the Live Oak Creek, which is a WP 
jurisdictional redline channel. No new or modified direct stormwater drainage connections 
to this WP channel, activities within WP’s easement, or activities over, under, or within 
the redline channel appear to be proposed or indicated on the applicant’s submitted 
materials.

This proposed project would result in NO increase of impervious area within the subject 
property. 

WP staff determines that the environmental impact is less than significant (LS) on redline 
channels under the jurisdiction of the Ventura County Public Works Agency - Watershed 
Protection.

Item 17b. Hydraulic Hazards - FEMA is deemed to be Less Than Significant.
The project site is in a location identified by the Federal Emergency Management Agency 
(FEMA) as an area of Minimal Flood Hazard Zone X Unshaded. This is evidenced on 
FEMA Map Panel 06111C0566F effective January 29, 2021. The proposed development 
is therefore, deemed to be Less Than Significant for Hydraulic Hazards - FEMA.

WATERSHED PROTECTION COMMENTS:
None.

WATERSHED PROTECTION CONDITIONS:
None.



PL21-0019 655 Burnham Rd, Oak View, CA, 93022
December 17, 2025
Page 3 of 3

If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me by email at 
Yunsheng.Su@Ventura.Org or by phone at 805-654-2005.

END OF TEXT.



 WATERSHED PROTECTION 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

 
DATE: January 7, 2026 
 
TO: Kristina Roodsari Boero, Planner, RMA - Planning Division 
 
FROM: John Gauthier, Groundwater Specialist, PWA-WP Groundwater 

Resources Section 
 
SUBJECT: PL21 - 0019 – Forest Home – Complete 
 
The Ventura County Public Works Agency – Watershed Protection, Water Resources 
Division, Groundwater Resources Section (GRS) has reviewed the project description 
and for the purpose of evaluating potential impacts relating to groundwater resources is 
issuing a no comment status.  
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
 
The applicant is requesting continued operation and maintenance of a camp for an 
additional 20-year period.  
 
A Mitigated Negative Declaration (MND) was completed in 1998 for this project when it 
was originally approved. The Project proposes no new development, no increase in the 
number of guests and no change in water demand from historic use.  
. 
The Project is located at 655 Burnham Road, Oak View California on Assessor’s Parcel 
Number 032-0-201-235. 
 
 
CEQA DETERMINATION 
 
As the application is for a time extension only and no new development or increase in the 
number of guests is proposed and the water demand for the project will not change, no 
CEQA review or analysis was conducted by the GRS.  
 
The GRS has no comment on the Project.  
 
If you have any questions, please contact me at (805) 654-5164 or 
John.Gauthier@venturacounty.gov.  
 
 
 
John Gauthier 
Groundwater Specialist 
 



Forest Home Minor Modification to CUP 3929
Case No. PL21-0019

January 26, 2026

Ojai Valley Municipal Advisory Council Meeting

Resource Management Agency, Planning Division
Kristina Boero, Senior Planner



Site Location 

2

• 655 Burnham Road, Oak View

• CUP Boundary: 83.5 acres

• Legal Lot: 130.58 acres



Zoning and Land Use Designations

3

• General Plan: Rural and Open Space

• Area Plan: Rural Institutional

• Zoning: 
RA-40 ac/SRP/TRU/DKS/HCWC/CWPA and 
AE 40 ac/SRP/TRU/DKS/HCWC/CWPA



• Continue operation and maintenance of a camp for an additional 20- year term.

• Variance to continue the camp's historic overnight population of 252 and daily 
population of 1,080 campers, staff and guests.

• No new development or ground disturbance.

• Removal of tree house structure constructed within an oak tree.

• Replacement of three manufactured homes

Project Description

4



Site Plan

5

• Existing Structures: 33,631 
sq. ft.

• Camp structures limited to 
approx. 22 acres

• Amphitheater amplified 
music (more than 500 feet 
from nearest offsite residence)



NCZO Requirement Variance Overnight Request: 252

Overnight (RA Zoning)
83.5 ac X 2.56 = 217.7 (214 persons)

Overnight (OS Zoning)
47.01 ac X 0.25 = 11.7 (12 persons)

Delta: + 26 campers, staff and guests

NCZO Maximum Overnight: 226

Variance

6

Overnight Population (NCZO Sections 8107-17()(1) and 8107-17(b)(3))

Daily Population (NCZO Section 8107-17(c)(1) and 8107-17(c)(3)

NCZO Requirement Variance Daily Request: 1,080

Daily (RA Zoning)
83.5 ac X 5.12 = 427.5 (428 persons)

Delta: + 628 campers, staff and guestsDaily (OS Zoning)
47.01 ac X 0.5 = 23.5 (24 persons)

NCZO Maximum Overnight: 452



Site Photos 

7

Upper Entrance Driveway 

Lower Entrance Parking Area 
with Landscape Screening



Site Photos 

8

Fellowship HallAmphitheater



California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA)

9

• Mitigated Negative Declaration (MND) Addendum [Section 15164(b)] of the CEQA 
Guidelines. 

• 1998 MND prepared for the camp. 

• Mitigation Measures:

• Mitigation Measures were completed prior to submittal of proposed project

Issue Area Mitigation Measure

General Plan and Ojai Valley Area Plan  • Landscape screening 
• Prohibited grading or disturbance under the 

dripline of protected oak trees

Transportation • Increase of 5 ADT

Solid Waste • Waste management plan development for the 
construction or demolition phase of the project 
that maximize waste prevention


	Forest Home OVM Memorandum PL21-0019.pdf
	Site Plan 11-2025.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1



	Forest Home OVMAC Presentation PL21-0019.pdf
	Slide Number 1
	Site Location 
	Zoning and Land Use Designations
	Project Description
	Site Plan
	Variance
	Site Photos 
	Site Photos 
	California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA)




